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Annex 1

Layout plan
Site address: Lots 170 RP and 174 CRP in D.D. 105, and adjoining

government land in San Tin, Yuen Long,
New Territories.

This layout plan shows the allocation of the structures and the size of them.



Annex 2

Site plan
Site address: Lots 170 RP and 174 CRP in D.D. 105, and adjoining

government land in San Tin, Yuen Long,
New Territories.

_____________________________________________________________________



Annex 3

Location plan
Location address: Lots 170 RP and 174 CRP in D.D. 105, and adjoining

government land in San Tin, Yuen Long,
New Territories.

___________________________________________________________
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From: BIG POINT < >
Sent: Wednesday, May 29, 2024 3:58 AM
To:
Subject: ((*Submit planning statement*)) Planning Application No. A/STT/5 

To: Planning Department
Attn: Mr. Chan
From: Smart Vehicle Body Manufacturer Ltd. - Ms. Biddy Tse

Dear Mr. Chan,

Re: Submit planning statement for planning application
Proposal: Temporary shop and services (sale of vehicle parts and accessories) with ancillary
facilities for a period of 3 years.
Application site: Lots 170RP and 174 CRP in D.D. 105, and adjoining government land in San
Tin, Yuen Long, New Territories.

Please find attached the planning statement for the caption-mentioned planning application for your
further proceed.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at my mobile no.:  for further
coordination and follow-up.

Thank you very much for your assistance and arrangement.

Best regards,
Biddy Tse
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From:
Sent: 2024-07-10 星期三 14:46:43
To: tpbpd/PLAND <tpbpd@pland.gov.hk>
Cc: Karen Kei Yee CHAN/PLAND <kkychan2@pland.gov.hk>
Subject: Reply to the questions for Planning Application No. A/STT/5
Attachment: 規劃續期申請_Form No S16-III_for app1ication_REV 4.pdf; 

Layout plan_for application_REV_20240710.pdf

To: The Planning Board
From: Smart Vehicle Body Manufacturer Ltd.
Date: 10th July, 2024.

Dear Sir/Madam,

Re: Reply to the questions for Planning Application No. A/STT/5

Please see our replies to your questions regarding the caption-subject of planning application as
follows:

1) We note the departmental comments from the Director of Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation
(Contact Person: Dr Azaria K.Y. WONG ) below for our follow-up:
"As the site is in close proximity with Mai Po Lung Village Egretry which has been active in recent
years, the applicant should preserve the existing trees along the site boundary and in close vicinity of
the site, avoid disturbing the breeding birds and their nests and eggs, and also avoid directing lighting
to the concerned trees."
Therefore, we will follow this comments guidance for continuous handling.

2) Please see the attached replacement page no. 6 of the application form which we have revised our
company's operation hours to:
From 08: 00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. [i.e. no night time operation between 11:00 p.m. to 08:00 a.m.] from
Monday to Sunday.

3) Please see attached the revised layout plan. This is to clarify the location and size of the uncovered
area for storage of vehicle parts and clarify that the remaining open-air area serves as a maneuvering
space for vehicles. Please see the individual notes shown in green colour on the layout plan for these
clarifications.

Should you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact me for further follow-up.

Thank you for your arrangement and kind attention.

Best regards,
Biddy Tse
Smart Vehicle Body Manufacturer Ltd.

Appendix Ib of RNTPC
Paper No. A/STT/5







Appendix II of RNTPC
Paper No. A/STT/5

Previous s.16 Applications covering the Application Site

Approved Applications

No. Application
No.

Use(s)/Development(s) Date of Consideration
(RNTPC)

1. A/YL-ST/10 Temporary retail shop for a period of 3 years 20.9.1996
(3 years)

2. A/YL-ST/79 Temporary retail shop with ancillary facilities for a
period of 12 months

26.2.1999
(12 months)

3. A/YL-ST/107 Temporary retail shop to sell vehicle parts and
accessories for a period of 3 years

5.11.1999
(3 years)

4. A/YL-ST/124# Proposed residential development 5.5.2000
[lapsed on 5.5.2003]

5. A/YL-ST/195 Temporary retail shop for vehicle parts and accessories
with ancillary facilities for a period of 3 years

26.4.2002
(3 years)

6. A/YL-ST/221 Temporary retail shop to sell vehicle parts & accessories
for a period of 3 years

17.1.2003
(3 years)

7. A/YL-ST/283 Temporary retail shop for vehicle parts and accessories
with ancillary facilities for a period of 3 years

24.6.2005
(3 years)

8. A/YL-ST/303* Temporary retail shop to sell vehicle parts and
accessories for a period of 3 years

28.4.2006
(3 years)

[revoked on 28.1.2009]

9. A/YL-ST/366* Temporary retail shop for vehicle parts and accessories
with ancillary facilities for a period of 3 years

19.6.2009
(3 years)

[revoked on 9.10.2009]

10. A/YL-ST/369* Temporary retail shop to sell vehicle parts and
accessories for a period of 3 years

10.7.2009
(3 years)

[revoked on 10.5.2012]

11. A/YL-ST/401 Temporary shop and services (second hand private car
sales) for a period of 3 years

15.4.2011
(3 years)

12. A/YL-ST/460 Temporary shop and services (sale of vehicle parts and
accessories) with ancillary facilities for a period of 3
years

8.5.2015
(3 years)

13. A/YL-ST/524 Temporary shop and services (sale of vehicle parts and
accessories) with ancillary facilities for a period of 3
years

1.6.2018
(3 years)

14. A/YL-ST/589 Renewal of planning approval for temporary shop and
services (sale of vehicle parts and accessories) with
ancillary facilities for a period of 3 years

28.5.2021
(3 years)

* denotes permission revoked
# denotes permission lapsed
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Rejected Application

No. Application
No.

Use(s)/Development(s) Date of
Consideration

(RNTPC)

Rejection
Reason(s)

1. A/YL-ST/388 Temporary retail area of second-hand goods
vehicles of above 5.5 tones, container tractors
and trailers for a period of 3 years

11.6.2010 (1), (2)

Rejection Reasons:
(1) Not compatible with the neighbouring residential uses as heavy goods vehicles were involved.
(2) Not in line with the Town Planning Board Guidelines No. 13E for “Application for Open Storage and

Port Back-up Uses” in that there were adverse comments from concerned Government department on
the environmental aspect, and the development would have adverse environmental nuisances to the
nearby residents.
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Similar s.16 Application within the “O” zone
on the San Tin Technopole OZP in the Past Five Years

Approved Application

No. Application No. Use(s)/Development(s) Date of Consideration
(RNTPC)

1. A/YL-ST/548 Proposed temporary shop and services (retail of
construction material) for a period of 3 years

5.7.2019
(3 years)
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Government Departments’ General Comments

1. Land Administration

Comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department (DLO/YL,
LandsD):

� no adverse comment on the planning application;

� the application site (the Site) comprises Old Schedule Agricultural Lots Nos. 170 RP
and 174 S.C RP in D.D.105 held under the Block Government Lease which contains
the restriction that no structures are allowed to be erected without the prior approval of
the Government and Government Land (GL);

� the following private lots are covered by Short Term Waivers as below table:

STW No. Lot No. (in D.D.105) Purposes
4231 170 RP Temporary Shop and Services (Sale of

Vehicle Parts and Accessories) with
Ancillary Facilities4232 174 S.C RP

� the GL within Site is covered by a Short Term Tenancy No. 2873 for the purpose of
“Temporary Shop and Services (Sale of Vehicle Parts and Accessories) with Ancillary
Facilities”; and

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix IV.

2. Traffic

Comments of the Commissioner for Transport (C for T):

� as the application has the same development parameters, including site area, layout,
and number of loading/unloading space as the previous application No. A/YL-ST/589,
he has no comment to the application from traffic engineering point of view; and

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix IV.

3. Nature Conservation

Comments of the Director of Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation (DAFC):

� he has no strong view on the application; and

� as the site is in close proximity with Mai Po Lung Village Egretry which has been
active in recent years, the applicant should preserve the existing trees along the site
boundary and in close vicinity of the Site, avoid disturbing the breeding birds and their
nests and eggs, and also avoid directing lighting to the concerned trees.
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4. Landscape

Comments of the Chief Town Planner/Urban Design and Landscape, Planning Department
(CTP/UD&L, PlanD):

� no objection to the application from landscape planning perspective; and

� with reference to the aerial photo of February 2023, the Site is located in an area of
miscellaneous rural fringe landscape character comprising of open storages/car parks,
temporary structures and scattered tree groups.  Further away from the Site, fishponds
and woodlands are observed in the north and the west respectively.  With reference to
the site photos taken in June 2024, the Site has been hard paved with some temporary
structures, an office and vehicles parking.  There is no distinctive landscape resources
within the Site.  With reference to the aerial photos of February 2023 and January 2021,
there is no significant change to the landscape character of the surrounding area.
According to the applicant’s submission, the major development parameters in the last
approved application No. A/YL-ST/589 remain unchanged and the existing landscape
planting will be well maintained.  Further adverse landscape impact within the Site
arising from the applied use is not anticipated.

5. Drainage

Comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North, Drainage Services Department
(CE/MN, DSD):

� no objection in principle to the planning application from drainage operation and
maintenance point of view;

� it is noted that the applicant implemented the drainage facilities on the Site under the
previous Application No. A/YL-ST/589.  The current application is for the same use
and site boundary as the previous application.  The applicant should provide DSD for
reference a set of record photographs showing with corresponding photograph
locations marked clearly on the approved drainage plan after the completion of
drainage works. DSD will inspect the completed drainage works jointly with the
applicant with reference to the set of photographs;

� all the proposed drainage facilities should be constructed and maintained by the
applicant at his own cost.  The applicant should ensure and keep all drainage works on
site under proper maintenance at all times; and

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix IV.

6. Fire Safety

Comments of the Director of Fire Services (D of FS):

� no objection in principle to the application subject to fire service installations (FSIs)
being provided to his satisfaction;

� in consideration of the design/nature of the proposal, FSIs are anticipated to be required.
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Therefore, the applicant is advised to submit relevant layout plans incorporated with
the proposed FSIs to his department for approval; and

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix IV.

7. Others

Comments from the Director of Leisure and Cultural Services (DLCS):

� the Site falls within an area zoned “Open Space” on the draft San Tin Technopole
Outline Zoning Plan No. S/STT/1.   He has no plan to develop the Site into public open
space in the upcoming three years; and

� since the application is for three years only, he has no in-principle objection to the
application.

8. Other Departments

The following government departments have no objection to/no adverse comment on the
application and their advisory comments, if any, are in Appendix IV:

(a) Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways Department (HyD);
(b) Chief Engineer/Railway Development 2-1, Railway Development Office, HyD;
(c) Project Manager (West), Civil Engineering and Development Department (PM(W),

CEDD)
(d) Head of Geotechnical Engineering Office, CEDD;
(e) Chief Engineer/Construction, Water Supplies Department;
(f) Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings Department;
(g) Commissioner of Police; and
(h) District Officer (Yuen Long), Home Affairs Department.
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Recommended Advisory Clauses

(a) The application site (the Site) falls within the boundary of San Tin Technopole (the
Technopole).  The Site may be resumed by the Government and that the applied use at
the Site may be terminated at any time during the planning approval period for
implementation of government projects;

(b) no operation between 11:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m., as proposed by the applicant, is allowed
on the Site during the planning approval period;

(c) no heavy goods vehicles including container vehicles, trailers and tractors as defined in
the Road Traffic Ordinance are allowed to be parked/stored on the Site, as proposed by
the applicant, at any time during the planning approval period;

(d) no dismantling, maintenance, repairing, cleansing, paint spraying and other workshop
activities are allowed on the Site at any time during the planning approval period;

(e) to note the comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department
(DLO/YL, LandsD) that:

� if the planning application is approved, the Short Term Tenancy (STT)/Short Term
Waiver (STW) holder(s) will need to apply to this office for modification of the
STT/STW conditions where appropriate. The application(s) for STW/STT will be
considered by the Government in its capacity as a landlord and there is no guarantee
that they will be approved.  The application(s), if approved, will be subject to such
terms and conditions including the payment of waiver fee/rent and administrative
fee as considered appropriate by LandsD.  Besides, given the applied use is
temporary in nature, only erection of temporary structure(s) will be considered;

(f) to note the comments of the Commissioner for Transport (C for T) that:

� the Site is connected to Shek Wu Wai Road via a section of a local access which is
not managed by the Transport Department (TD).  The land status of the local
access should be clarified with LandsD by the applicant.  Moreover, the
management and maintenance responsibilities of the local access should be clarified
with the relevant lands and maintenance authorities accordingly; and

� no vehicle is allowed to queue back to or reverse onto/from public road at any time
during the planning approval period;

(g) to note the comments of the Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways
Department (CHE/NTW, HyD) that:

� the Site involves Government land where is not maintained by HyD;

� the proposed access arrangement of the Site should be commented and approved by
TD;

� HyD shall not be responsible for the maintenance of any access connecting the Site
and Shek Wu Wai Road; and
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� adequate drainage measures shall be provided to prevent surface water running from
the Site to the nearby public roads and drains;

(h) to note the comments of the Chief Engineer/Railway Development 2-1, Highways
Department (CE/RD2-1, HyD) that:

� the Site is in close proximity to the Northern Link (NOL) Spur Line alignment which
is under development by MTR Corporation Limited (MTRCL);

� the applicant is required to consult MTRCL with respect to the design and
construction of the proposed works, whether it would affect the NOL Spur Line; and

� deep foundation such as piling is not permitted at the Site unless MTRCL’s
agreement is sought;

(i) to note the comments of the Director of Environmental Protection (DEP) that:

� the applicant is advised to follow the environmental mitigation measures and
requirements in the latest “Code of Practice on Handling the Environmental Aspects
of Temporary Uses and Open Storage Sites” issued by the Environmental Protection
Department;

(j) to note the comments of the Director of Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation (DAFC)
that:

� the applicant should preserve the existing trees along the site boundary and in close
vicinity of the Site, avoid disturbing the breeding birds and their nests and eggs, and
also avoid directing lighting to the concerned trees;

(k) to note the comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North, Drainage Services
Department (CE/MN, DSD) that:

� the applicant shall ascertain that all existing flow paths would be properly
intercepted and maintained without increasing the flooding risk of the adjacent area;

� the applicant is reminded that the proposed drainage proposal/works as well as the
Site boundary should not cause encroachment upon areas outside his jurisdiction;

� no public sewerage maintained by CE/MN, DSD is currently available for
connection.  For sewage disposal and treatment, agreement from the DEP shall be
obtained;

� the applicant should consult DLO/YL, LandsD regarding all the proposed drainage
works outside the lot boundary in order to ensure the unobstructed discharge from
the Site in future; and

� all the proposed drainage facilities should be constructed and maintained by the
applicant at his own cost.  The applicant should ensure and keep all drainage works
on site under proper maintenance at all times;
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(l) to note the comments of the Director of Fire Services (D of FS) that:

� the applicant should submit relevant layout plans incorporated with the proposed
fire service installations (FSIs) to his Department for approval.  The layout plans
should be drawn to scale and depicted with dimensions and nature of occupancy,
and the location of the proposed FSIs to be installed should be clearly marked on
the layout plans; and

� if the proposed structure(s) is required to comply with the Buildings Ordinance (BO)
(Cap. 123), detailed fire service requirements will be formulated upon receipt of
formal submission of general building plans;

(m) to note the comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings
Department (CBS/NTW, BD) that:

� it is noted that 5 structures are proposed in the application.  Before any new
building works (including containers/open sheds as temporary buildings, demolition
and land filling, etc.) are to be carried out on the Site, prior approval and consent of
the Building Authority (BA) should be obtained, otherwise they are unauthorized
building works (UBW) under the Buildings Ordinance (BO).  An Authorised
Person should be appointed as the co-ordinator for the proposed building works in
accordance with the BO;

� the Site shall be provided with means of obtaining access thereto from a street and
emergency vehicular access in accordance with Regulations 5 and 41D of the
Building (Planning) Regulations (B(P)R) respectively;

� the Site does not abut on a specified street of not less than 4.5m wide and its
permitted development intensity shall be determined under Regulation 19(3) of the
B(P)R at the building plan submission stage;

� if the existing structures are erected on leased land without the approval of the BA,
they are UBW under BO and should not be designated for any applied use under the
application;

� for UBW erected on leased land, enforcement action may be taken by the BD to
effect their removal in accordance with the prevailing enforcement policy against
UBW as and when necessary.  The granting of any planning approval should not
be construed as an acceptance of any existing building works or UBW on the Site
under the BO;

� any temporary shelters or converted containers for office, storage, washroom or
other uses are considered as temporary buildings are subject to the control of Part
VII of the B(P)R; and

� detailed checking under the BO will be carried out at building plan submission stage.
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